ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF INVESTMENT

Responses to Submitted Questions:  Emerging Market Fixed Income 

This document serves as a formal response to the questions submitted through the process established by the Illinois State Board of Investment (“ISBI” or the “Board”).  As stated in the Request for Competitive Proposals (“RFP”), questions concerning the RFPs had to be submitted in writing via e-mail to the Search Contact by 3:00 PM, CST, Friday, July 26, 2013.  Responses to questions properly submitted are consolidated into a single Q & A document as detailed below and posted on the Board’s website on or about July 29, 2013.  The Q & A document does not identify the source of the query.

1.
[Respondent] understand based on [ISBI’s] Investment Policy Guidelines that a minimum of 0%-5% (International Fixed Income) of brokerage transactions require completion through minority-owned broker/dealers.  The emerging market debt asset class can be somewhat of a liquidity-constrained market requiring high levels of regulatory capital to be held at the broker/dealer.  Given the illiquid and regulatory capital requirements, brokers of considerable size dominate the brokerage transactions in this market and transacting through smaller brokerages would be difficult.   Is this the appropriate target, and will [ISBI] be looking for managers to satisfy the 0%-5% minimum requirement on this EMD mandate?

As stated in the Board’s Investment Policy, the appropriate target is 0%-5%; however, the Board understands the brokerage constraints associated with the emerging market debt asset class.    
2.
Would [ISBI] consider an Emerging Market Corporate Bond only strategy that is managed to the CEMBI for this mandate?
No.  
3.
Would it be possible to receive a copy of the Marquette Associates’ Separate Account Fee Study that is mentioned in Item #3 of the minimum requirements section in the RFP?

No.
4.
For question 84, [Respondent] would like further clarification on Max Weight.  [Is ISBI] looking for max weight since inception or the strategy’s max weight guidelines?

“Maximum Weight” refers to the maximum weight guidelines for the investment strategy.

5.
For question 97, [Respondent] would like further clarification on minimum and maximum (% market value).  Please advise if this is since inception or if [ISBI is] just looking for the strategy’s minimum and maximum guidelines.
“Minimum Weight” and “Maximum Weight” refer to the minimum/maximum weight guidelines for the investment strategy.

6.
On page 18 of the RFP document there is statement regarding a CCO signature, please advise if this is a requirement for this RFP.
Yes, certification of the accuracy of the statements/documents is required and may be executed by the CCO or person with similar authority.

7.
Is the I[SBI] able to share additional details on the proposed investment guidelines for this mandate? For example, are there any tracking error/outperformance targets? Will allocations to off-benchmark positions such as local rates, currencies and corporates be permitted?
ISBI is unable to share any proposed investment guidelines since such will be dependent upon the Respondent selected.

8.
Can [ISBI] please provide further explanation of item #29 from Exhibit B?  Specifically related to the purchase cost of the Board's List of Forbidden Entities and List of Scrutinized Companies.
The cost of obtaining the lists is absorbed by ISBI’s investment advisers on a pro-rated basis.  Last year, the annual cost to each investment adviser was $1,502.
9.
[Respondent] meets all requirements and has assets under management in excess of $500b. [Respondent] manage[s] over $7b in emerging markets debt strategies, including two segregated accounts valued at approximately $140m and $400m. Will [Respondent’s] strategy be considered? 

Yes.
10.
Can the $1 billion assets in emerging market fixed income product also include emerging market debt exposure assets aggregated from our other fixed income portfolios?

Yes.
11.
With regards to the MINIMUM QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AND CERTIFICATION (item 3) – if the proposed fee is greater the 45bps, will that constituent an automatic disqualification?
Yes.  
12.
Will the mandate have the ability to invest in local currency and corporate debt?
Yes.

13.
If [Respondent] provide[s] a separate account, would [ISBI’s] IMA and guidelines permit [Respondent] to use pooled vehicles to access certain portions of the fixed income marketplace (i.e., Emerging Markets Local, Emerging Markets Corporate, etc.)?
Yes.

14.
Do[es ISBI] have credit quality limits within [its] investment guidelines?  If so, can [ISBI] provide them?

No.

15.
Do[es ISBI] have any specific security type restrictions (i.e., 144a’s)?
Not at this time; any restrictions will be dependent upon the Respondent selected.
16.
Are there SRI restrictions?    If so, what are they?
As set forth in ISBI’s Investment Policy, investment restrictions are placed on certain companies with ties to the governments of Iran and Sudan.

17.
Do[es ISBI] currently use or permit derivatives?  Futures?  CDS?  Swaps?  Currency futures?  If so, do[es ISBI] have ISDAs, futures, options and collateral agreements in place with brokers?  If so, which brokers?  If not, [is ISBI] willing to enter into these agreements or to authorize the adviser to do so on [ISBI’s] behalf?
Derivatives are currently permitted; however, ISBI would need to examine how they are used to determine whether such would be permissible in this particular mandate.
18.
Do[es ISBI] have unique or specific currency requirements?  Do[es ISBI] require the portfolio to be hedged back to specific currency?  Are there any restrictions on who [Respondent] can trade with (e.g., custodian only)?
No to all.
19.
What is the account’s typical cash flows profile regarding redemptions/subscriptions?
After initial funding, cash will be added or subtracted depending upon rebalancing requirements.
20.
Are there recognized gain/loss management requirements?
No.

21.
[Respondent] provide[s] monthly reporting only (15 days after month end/TBD).  Is this acceptable?
ISBI requires monthly, quarterly, and annual reporting from its investment advisers. The monthly reporting shall include a position/cash reconciliation with ISBI’s Custodian which is due by 05 business day. Additional reporting requirements include market outlook, firm update, performance, attribution, etc. It would not be acceptable to be unable to adhere to ISBI’s reporting requirements.
22.
Do[es ISBI] have any other special reporting requirements?
ISBI requires monthly, quarterly, and annual reporting from its investment advisers. The monthly reporting shall include a position/cash reconciliation with ISBI’s Custodian which is due by 05 business day. Additional reporting requirements include market outlook, firm update, performance, attribution, etc., primarily due by 30 days after quarter end/year end.  ISBI may also request additional customized reports if the need arises.
23.
If [Respondent is] selected, would [ISBI] be amenable to transferring the assets in-kind or via cash to [Respondent] directly as opposed to through a transition manager?
Such is dependent upon the Respondent selected; determination will be made prior to funding.

24.
Are there specific trade communications requirements such as pre-approval of trades or the use of non-SWIFT trade communications?
ISBI does not have pre-approvals of trades.

25.
Are there any provisions in the Investment Policy, Standard Investment Agreement, or Fixed Income Investment Guidelines, that are particularly unique to the plan, as it relates to a Fixed Income portfolio assignment?
No.
26.
Can [ISBI] forward a copy of [its] Guidelines?
See ISBI’s response to question #7.

27.
What are the service requirements for investment reviews?
At a minimum, quarterly conference calls and periodic face-to-face meetings with ISBI Staff and Consultant are required.

28.
Will this mandate allow for the full use of Emerging Markets Debt securities – Emerging Markets Sovereign, Emerging Markets Local and Emerging Markets Corporate?
Yes to all.

29.
Will this Emerging Markets Debt portfolio be limited to US Dollar denominated securities only?  Or will [ISBI] allow Local Currency debt?
No.
30.
Assuming [ISBI] allow[s] Emerging Markets Sovereign, Emerging Markets Corporate and Emerging Markets Local, do[es ISBI] have any specific minimum/maximum weights or ranges for each?  Target allocation?
Such will be dependent upon the Respondent selected.

31.
Do[es ISBI] have a list of certified or approved minority and women owned brokers who currently have the operational and financial ability and which are currently trading Emerging Markets Sovereign, Emerging Markets Local and Emerging Markets Corporate bonds?   Can [ISBI] please provide [Respondent] this list?

ISBI’s list of approved MWBDE broker/dealers has been posted in conjunction with this document; however the onus is on the investment adviser to analyze the operational and financial ability of each broker-dealer.  The approved list only identifies firms that are certified by a state agency as minority or women-owned, or owned by a person with a disability.
32.
Is ISBI seeking an EMD Diversified Strategy that invests in and rotates among the 3 investable sectors of EMD, those being EM USD sovereign debt, EM USD corporate credit, and EM local currency sovereign debt?
Yes to all.

33.
If EMD Diversified is the appropriate strategy, does ISBI have any restrictions in mind on the allocations to EM USD corporate credit and non-USD exposures?  If not, can [Respondent] obtain more specifics as to what strategy ISBI has in mind?

Such will be dependent upon the Respondent selected.

34.
[Respondent’s] EMD Diversified Strategy is managed against the JPM EMBI Global while [ISBI’s] proposed benchmark is the JPM EMBI Global DIVERSIFIED.   Both indices are comprised of USD-denominated sovereign and quasi-sovereign bonds.  Hence, any EM Corporate bonds and EM Local Currency bonds are out-of-benchmark (OOB) sectors totaling approximately 40-50% of the strategy (approximately 10-15% in local currency sovereign bonds and 30-35% in corporate bonds).   Can ISBI comment on this strategy and OOB exposures versus the strategy that ISBI has in mind for their EMD allocation.
No comment.

35.
Is this a hard currency ONLY mandate?  If so, does that mean exposure to both hard currency EM sovereigns AND EM corporate debt or is the strategy limited to only one of these sectors?  
See ISBI’s response to question #28.

36.
Does ISBI have targets in mind with respect to excess return and/or tracking error relative to the selected benchmark? 
Such will be dependent upon the Respondent selected.
37.
RFP Question 97:   Can [ISBI] clarify terminology in this question as there appears to be overlapping categories:

· Is EMD Local Currency in reference to EMD Local Currency Sovereign debt only?

· Is EMD Hard Currency in reference to EMD Hard Currency Sovereign debt only?  [Respondent] ask[s] this question since EMD Corporate is primarily comprised of Hard Currency bonds.   

· If the answer to the 2 Q’s above is “yes”, it seems the 3rd line item (i.e. EMD Sovereign) is unnecessary?

Hard currency and sovereign are identical; the use of both was a redundancy made in error.
38.
Is it acceptable for [R]espondent’s 3-year, GIPS verified, performance track record to be managed versus the JP Morgan EMBI Global benchmark?
Yes, ISBI’s stated benchmark for this mandate is the JPMorgan EMBI Global Diversified Index.

